SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
January 18, 2012
9:02 a.m
9:02: 00 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Stednman called the Senate Finance Committee neeting to
order at 9:02 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Lyman Hof f man, Co- Chair
Senat or Bert Stedman, Co-Chair
Senator Lesil McQuire, Vice-Chair
Senat or Johnny Ellis

Senat or Denni s Egan

Senat or Donny d son

Senat or Joe Thonmas

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

D ane Barrans, Executive Director, Post secondary Educati on
Comm ssi on, Departnment of  Educati on; Ki nberli Poppe- Smart ,
Deputy Conm ssioner, Medicaid and Healthcare Policy, Departnent
of Health and Social Services; Kelly Henriksen, Assistant
Attorney General, Departnment of Law, Jerry Burnett, Director,
Adm ni strative Services Division, Departnment of Revenue; Joanne
G bbens, Deputy Director, Senior Disability Services, Departnment
of Health and Social Services.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Robynn W 1l son, Audit Supervisor, Tax Division, Departnent of
Revenue; Scot t Sterling, Depar t nent of El der Fraud and
Assi st ance; El i zabeth Russo, Supervising Attorney, Publ i c
Guardi an Section, Ofice of Public Advocacy; Katherine Mnfreda,
Chief of Crimnal Records and Identification Borough, Division
of Statew de Services, Department of Public Safety.

SUMVARY



SB 2 LI CENSE PLATES: NATI ONAL RI FLE ASSN.
SB 2 was SCHEDULED but not HEARD.

SB 16 SPECI AL REQUEST LI CENSE PLATES
SB 16 was SCHEDULED but not HEARD.

SB 86 PROTECTI ON OF VULNERABLE ADULTS/ M NORS

SB 86 was HEARD and HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

CSHB 104( RLS)
ALASKA PERFORMANCE SCHOLARSHI PS

CSHB 104(RLS) was HEARD and HELD in Conmttee for
further consideration.

#hb104
CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 104(RLS)

"An Act renaming the Alaska performance scholarship and
relating to the scholarship and tax credits applicable to
contributions to the scholarship; relating to Al aska
Advant age education grant funding and to Al aska perfornmance
schol arship funding; establishing an account and fund for
t hose purposes; nmaking conform ng anmendnments; and providing
for an effective date."

9:04: 54 AM
Co- Chair Stedman di scussed the agenda and the rul es of decorum

DI ANE BARRANS, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, POSTSECONDARY  EDUCATI ON
COWM SSI ON, DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, testified in support of the
| egislation and expressed appreciation on behalf of the
adm nistration for the bill being heard so early in the process.
She stated that the governor's original request nodified the
name of the program to deal wth copyright infringenent and
provi ded a stable funding source for statew de schol arshi ps. She
added that the governor was seeking to establish a recurring
fund source. The current bill had been nodified to include
funding for Al aska Performance Scholarships (APS) and Al aska
Advant age Education G ants. She observed that Al aska Advantage

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 2 01/18/12 9:02 A M



Education Grants provided the state's only needs-based financi al
aid program for postsecondary educati on.

9:11: 54 AM

Ms. Barrans discussed Sections 1 through 4, 7, 9, 13, and 16;
these sections were the progranis "housekeepi ng conponents"” as
they renamed the scholarship program She inforned the conmttee
that Section 5 clarified a new process in the event of a funding
shortfall and furthered that if a shortfall was experienced, no
new students would be accepted into the scholarship program
Secti on 6 added requi renents t hat are appl i cabl e to
post secondary institutions seeking to participate in APS; this
section required that participating institutions nust provide
mandatory counseling and insured that the courses needed for a
student to conplete their program on tinme were available. She
rel ated that Sections 8, 10, and 14 established the accounts, as
well as a fund into which appropriations would be made; these
sections specified that incone earned on investnents and
donations to the fund were permitted and al so provided a funding
schene. She |ooked at Sections 11, 12, and 19; these Sections
created tax credits for corporate citizens to nmake contributions
to the APS and Education Gant funds and also ensured that
contributions remain eligible for the credit in the years
subsequent to the sunset date.

Ms. Barrans indicated that Section 15 contained transition
| anguage, while Sections 17 through 20 dealt wth effective
dates. She noted that ideally, new requirenments for institutions
woul d have an effective date of one year later in order to allow
institutions to neet the requirenent changes. She stated that
funds were set aside by passing SB 76 the prior session and that

conform ng changes to the bill were appropriate. She stressed
that "We stand ready to work with the commttee to bring back a
bill that is acceptable to all parties.”

9:15:40 AM

Co-Chair Stedman indicated that not everyone was famliar wth
the legislation and requested an explanation of the HB 104. M.
Barrans explained that the bill nodified a program that was put
into statute in 2009; it created a program that incentivized
Al askans to succeed in school and score well on national exans.
The high school graduating class of 2011 was the first class of
students eligible to receive the scholarship. She said that the
original bill required that the Conmi ssion on Postsecondary
Education, the Departnent of Education (DEED), the Departnent of

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 3 01/18/12 9:02 A M



Labor (DLWD), and the University of Al aska report on the
outcones of the scholarship program the report was due within
ten days of the start of the current session.

Ms. Barrans highlighted the upcom ng report and pointed out that
approximately 2400 Al askans were eligible in 2011 for the
scholarship, but that only a little over 900 made use of the
program She furthered that due to the tentative nature of
funding the prior year, many students chose to attend
institutions in other st at es. She  expounded that t he
schol arships could not be used at institutions outside of the
state and noted that out of those eligible, alnbst as many
students attended institutions outside the state as those who
attended in-state institutions. She concluded that over tineg,
nore trend data would be available regarding the scholarship's
eligibility and utilization.

Co- Chair Hoffman wondered how the fund would be split between
the Al aska Advantage Education Gants and APS. M. Barrans
replied that there was no prescribed formula for a split. She
continued that there was discussion during the prior session
regarding a formula, but that the offered bill version did not
address that aspect.

Co-Chair Hoffman stated that there was a lot of interest in the
Al aska Advantage Education Gant Fund and that |egislators
want ed assurances about what portion would be allocated to that
fund. He queried if the admnistration had a recommended spilt.
Ms. Barrans responded that there was a discussion about a one-
third/two-thirds split.

9:19: 35 AM

Co-Chair Hoffrman wondered if the admnistration felt that the
$400 million set aside would be adequate under a one-third/two-
thirds split. Ms. Barrans replied that the funding was adequate.
She stated that the utilization rates for the scholarship had
been determ ned based on a proxy, but indicated that the rates
had been adjusted based on actual experiences that year. The
adjusted rates were slightly lower and were reflected in the
updated fiscal notes. She deferred to the Departnent of Revenue
(DOR) for a discussion regarding what incone could be generated
off of the $400 mllion allocation.

Senat or Thomas queried what kind of marketing was in place to

pronote the scholarship program M. Barrans replied that the
Conmi ssi on on Postsecondary Education had been working closely

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 4 01/18/12 9:02 A M



with DEED and the governor's office to coordinate the marketing.
There was a staff person at DEED who was charged wth
dissemnating information about the program to the schools,
counsel ors, principals, and superintendents. The comm ssion used
direct marketing approaches. Information from DEED and the
Per manent Fund Division was used to identify and target students
in order to send information about the programdirectly to them
The comm ssion's outreach staff, based in Anchorage, gave public
service announcenents that were targeted at students who were
planning for <college. She added that the program had no
operating funds and did not have a specific marketing budget.

9:22:37 AM

Senator Ellis expressed concern that rural students could not
realistically access the courses needed to qualify for nerit
schol arships. He queried if any changes could be made to HB 104
to address the realistic access of rural students to the courses
needed to conpete for scholarships. M. Barrans responded that
Comm ssi oner Hanley from DEED was in the room and that he m ght
want to respond to the question personally. She interjected that
she did not believe the statutory |anguage had been altered to
af fect that change. She furthered that data showed that students
from small, renote areas were naking it into the program but
acknow edged that it was nore of a challenge for rural students
to qualify. She spoke about the need to make the required
courses "readily available" to all students.

Co-Chair Hoffman asked if an analysis had been done conparing
qualifying students from rural versus wurban districts. M.
Barrans responded that the analysis was included in the report.

Ms. Barrans stressed that federal privacy |laws prevented them
from reporting small graduating classes where the nunber was
bel ow an established threshold. Reporting on very small nunbers,
such as tw or three, could lead to the students being
identified as individuals. In order to satisfy federal
requi renents, the conmssion was required to "roll up nunbers”
to a district or region level in schools where the graduating
class was too small.

9:26: 30 AM
Senator Thomas queried if the increases in the tuition had
pronpted any discussion in the adm nistration about increasing

scholarship funding levels. M. Barrans replied that the
adm nistration had not had a discussion regarding funding

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 5 01/18/12 9:02 A M



| evel s. She indicated that the scholarship levels were fixed to
the 2010-2011 tuition and would have |ess "buying power," but
added that the dollar levels were set in statute and could be
changed.

Senat or Egan wondered how many needs-based requests they had
been receiving. Ms. Barrans replied that they had received about
4400 applicants that year and were able to fund just over 2000
with education grants. Based on the current application vol uneg,
just under $7 mllion would be needed to fund all student
appl i cants.

Senator Egan asked if the nunber of funded students represented
just less than half of the applicants. M. Barrans replied that
Senat or Egan was correct.

Senator O sen expressed the inportance of a good education. He
noted that HB 104 seened to put rural school districts at a
di sadvantage. He indicated that he would have a hard tine
supporting this type of legislation wuntil rural and urban
students were on nore equal footing and enphasized to Co-Chair
Stedman that he had "sone pretty strong feelings" on the issue.

9:29:34 AM

Co-Chair Stedman stressed the inportance of using the sign-up
sheet if you would like to testify on a bill. He listed the five
updated fiscal notes as follows: two zero fiscal notes from DOR
Treasury and Tax Division, one zero fiscal note from DEED, and

two fiscal inmpact notes from the Alaska Conmission on
Post secondary Education. One note from the Al aska Comm ssion on
Post secondary Education contained a $2 nillion dollar increnent

for APS while the other reflected a $3.996 mllion request in
adm nistration and operating costs. Both fiscal notes included
i ncreasi ng out-year cost estinmates. He nentioned that one of the
fiscal notes had been received that norning and was new to him

ROBYNN W LSON, AUDIT SUPERVI SOR, TAX DIVISION, DEPARTMENT OF
REVENUE (via teleconference), introduced herself and stated that
she was available for questions. Co-Chair Stedman inquired what
the tax credit's net effect was on the state's credit nmechani sm
Ms. WIlson replied that HB 104 did not change the anount of
credit available, but it added a category under which an
education credit could be clai ned.

9:32: 03 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 6 01/18/12 9:02 A M



Senator O son wondered if there had been indication that the
private sector wanted to participate in the tax credit program
Ms. WIson responded that they had not yet received the tax
returns that would report private sector participation.

Senator O son furthered that he assuned there was a study
regarding possible private sector participation. He wondered
whether the state would fully fund the program M. WIson
indicated that DOR did not have a study regarding private sector
participation and furthered that as HB 104 was witten, the
state would be fully funding the program

9:33:36 AM
AT EASE

9:34:19 AM
RECONVENED

Co-Chair Stedman expressed his surprise that no one had signed
up to testify on HB 104.

Co-Chair Hoffman had a question in reference to a fiscal note
prepared by Diane Barrans. He noted that from FY 13 to FY 18,
the nunber of students entering the program was anticipated to
grow by 35 percent and that the expected payout of the fund wll
increase from $6.9 mllion to $9.6 mllion. He queried how the
fund would be nanaged to address the increase in payouts and
whet her the fund would be adequate if no additional dollars were
added.

Ms. Barrans asked for clarification on which fiscal note Co-
Chair Hoffrman was referring to. Co-Chair Hoffman replied that he
was referring to the fiscal note that the Ofice of Mnagenent
and Budget (OVB) noted as nunber 2738.

Co-Chair Hoffman reiterated his question. M. Barrans replied
that her discussions with DOR led her to believe that
investnments from the fund would be based on expected pay outs
and that investnent decisions would be ainmed at insuring that
the fund was able to cover the costs. She deferred to Jerry
Burnett for a nore detailed answer.

Co-Chair Hoffman noted that a high rate of return would be
needed to of fset increases in student payouts.

9:37:42 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 7 01/18/12 9:02 A M



Co-Chair Stedman asked for an explanation of the $400 nillion
set aside for the fund and wondered what revenue m ght be earned
of f t hat al l ocati on, i ncl udi ng projected shortfalls or
sur pl uses.

JERRY BURNETT, DI RECTOR, ADM NI STRATI VE SERVICES DI VISION
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE, replied that when the bill was originally
i ntroduced, the $400 mllion was to be invested in a fund wth
an annual real rate of return of 5 percent. He stated that the
fund was to be inflation proofed and would earn 7.75 to 8
percent in the current market place. The fund was projected to
earn $20 mllion the first year and would grow each year. He
noted that "we're looking at less than $20 mllion in those
first years". DOR would consider the programs costs and would
custoni ze an asset allocation designed to build the fund, based
on the $400 million allocation and the expected future paynents.
He observed that the $400 million had earned interest throughout
the year in the general investnent fund and that as a result,
the Al aska Housing Capital Corporation had nore than the initial
al I ocation avail abl e.

9:39: 29 AM

Co- Chair Hof fman queried what interest rate the fund had earned
during the first 6 nonths. M. Burnett replied that he was
unsure, but that he could get that information. He added that
over the past several years, the fund had earned 3 to 4 percent.
He reiterated that the allocation would be custom zed based on
the future needs of the fund and remarked that fiscal the note
in the packet indicated that based on the house bill's |anguage,
t he noney would have to be left in the general investnent fund.

Co- Chair Hoffman queried if the $400 million would grow by the
anticipated 35 percent between FY 13 to FY 18 in order to neet
the expected payout. M. Burnett responded that he believed the
$400 mllion allocation could potentially earn enough to neet
the payout in FY 18 and expounded that in order to neet the
payouts, DOR could custom ze an asset allocation that had a
| oner probability of |oss.

Co-Chair Stedman requested that DOR cone back to the conmmttee
with a forecast projecting the initial $400 mnmllion input,
i ncluding expected wthdrawals and payouts. He specified that
the forecast should go through FY 18 or whatever fiscal year DOR
was confortable projecting to. He observed the simlarity to the
Power Cost Equalization program where the payouts had reached 7
percent and erosion of the principal was a concern. He continued

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 8 01/18/12 9:02 A M



that the fund could beconme part of a larger discussion when
oversi ght was done on various pools of funds.

9:42:27 AM

Co-Chair Hoffrman queried if the interest earned from the $400
mllion was going to pay for the first year of operating
expenses or if additional noney would be requested. M. Burnett
replied that he nade no assertions about how the program would
be funded during the first year and el aborated that because the
$400 million had been earning interest in a segregated fund that
kept its earnings, there was nore than $400 nillion avail able.
He added that the appropriation to fund was only $400 nilli on.

Senator Ellis queried if students who get GED s qualify for the
merit based scholarship prograns and wondered how the program
dealt wth students from tunultuous backgrounds, |ike those
attending mlitary academ es and alternative high schools. M.
Barrans replied that students would be required to obtain a high
school diploma in order to qualify.

Senator MQ@iire inquired if the current neeting was the |ast
hearing on HB 104. Co-Chair Stedman stressed that this was the
first hearing on HB 104 and that nore hearings woul d be held.

9:45:27 AM

Senator MQ@ire requested that M. Barrans give further
expl anation of what led to HB 104 and what it acconplished. She
stated that the bill would not be the scholarship for every
Al askan, but that it was an opportunity for exceptional
students. She continued that special options could be explored
to help rural students and indicated an interest in hearing how
Loui siana had dealt with their rural townships. She stated that
Galena's student program was a nodel that could be used to
create a program for Alaska's rural students and stressed the
need to enable rural districts to bring students into
conpliance, rather than having rigid standards to qualify for
schol arshi ps. She expressed her approval of the intent of HB 104
and a desire to work with DOR through the process. She added
that declining production of the Trans-Al aska Pipeline System
(TAPS) would tighten the state's budget and force the state to
make choices. She indicated that funding mght not always be
there for certain prograns and that it was DEED s job to "sell"
the programto the | egislature.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 9 01/18/12 9:02 A M



Ms. Barrans pointed out that HB 104 was not the bill that
created the program There were many hearings on the origina
bill and the legislature had put the program into statute the
prior year. She enphasized that the program had been operating
less than a year and stressed the benefit of several years of
progress before making substantive changes to the program The
| egislation was intended to change the programis name and to
fund the program She urged that it was inportant to give the
program tine to operate before attenpting to fix it and rel ated
that the program was intended to help students nake the right
decisions early. She acknow edged that the program was not the
end solution, but that it was a good starting pl ace.

Senator O son noted that DOR expected to be able to achieve the
7.75 to 8 [percent] interest rate. He wondered what nechani sms
were in place to insure that qualified children were not
overl ooked if the expected interest did not accrue. He furthered
that his real question was if DOR was setup to use the funds
that were already in place. M. Burnett replied that he was
unabl e to answer because DOR needed to exam ne nodels for future
funding in order to establish an asset allocation for that
purpose. He added that the program could be set up as an
endownent or as fixed incone investnments that were based on
timng.

9:51: 56 AM

Co-Chair Stedman noted that the commttee would await the
analysis that M. Burnett had referred to and observed that in
the future the conmttee would look at a nulti-year period,
rather than wusing a six nonth period and extrapolating it
further out. He announced that the Permanent Fund and the
retirement system would be reviewed in the commttee at a |ater
date. He pointed out that there would be a presentation on the
growh in the Goss Donestic Product (GDP) relative to debt
| evel s; the presentation would give thema "better feel for what
we can expect out of the performance of our pile of assets that
we' ve set aside, our cash.”

Senat or Thomas asked for a witten explanation of M. Barrans'
response to Senator Egan's question. M. Barrans agreed to
provi de the information.

9:53: 38 AM

House Bill 104 was HEARD and HELD in conmmittee for further
consi derati on.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 10 01/18/12 9:02 A M



9:53: 59 AM
AT EASE

9:54: 20 AM
RECONVENED

#sbh86
SENATE BI LL NO. 86

"An Act relating to the protection of property of persons
under disability and mnors; relating to the crime of
violating a protective order concerning certain vul nerable
persons; relating to aggravating factors at sentencing for
of fenses concerning a victim 65 years or older; relating to
the protection of vulnerable adults; anending Rule 12(h)
Alaska Rules of Crimnal Procedure; anmending Rule 45(a),
Alaska Rules of Crimnal Procedure; anending Rule 65,
Al aska Rules of Civil Procedure; anending Rule 17, Al aska
Rul es of Probate Procedure; anmending Rule 9, Alaska Rules
of Administration; and providing for an effective date."

9:54: 35 AM

KI MBERLI POPPE- SVART, DEPUTY COW SSI ONER, MEDI CAID  AND
HEALTHCARE POLI CY, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES,

testified in support and introduced the bill and stated that the
| egi sl ation was a col | aborative, cross-agency effort.

9:57:38 AM

JOANNE G BBENS, DEPUTY DI RECTOR, SENIOR DI SABILITY SERVICES,
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVICES, testified in support
of SB 86 and highlighted inportant elenents of the |egislation
which covered existing gaps in the services provided to
vul nerabl e adults. She stated that the nost inportant elenent of
the bill created a process for appointing a tenporary
conservator to soneone at risk of emnent harm to their
financial status or healthcare decision making. The |egislation
allowed the court to inpose energency conservatorships which
could be renoved or renewed as needed. She furthered that the
bill assisted in protecting financial assets, managing financi al
affairs, and preventing em nent waste or fraudul ent dissipation
of assets. She declared that the second nost inportant elenent
of the bill created a process for the inposition of financial
protective orders. The legislation inparted the ability to apply
for a 20-day ex parte protective order that gave courts the

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 11 01/18/12 9:02 A M



tools to stop or prevent financial exploitation. She noted that
these tools were not currently available to Adult Protective
Services or others who assist with vulnerable adults. She added
that another notable elenment of the legislation was that it
mandated that anyone working at a healthcare or educational
facility nust report suspected abuse of vulnerable adults. She
expounded that currently, only admnistrators were nmandated
reporters. Under SB 86, the nmandate would be expanded to apply
to educational facilities. The legislation also defined "undue
i nfluence” as a reportable harm Undue influence neant that a
person of trust was abusing or msusing their power and applying
undue influence to a vulnerable adult in order to gain control
over their healthcare decision nmaking, assets, or finances. She
felt that the addition of undue influence and nmandated reporters
would give the state earlier detection and intervention for
i ndividuals who were vulnerable to loss of their property or
decision making. The bill enabled earlier protective orders,
facilitated nore thorough and successful i nvesti gations,
provided protection of assets during an investigation, and
enhanced crimnal penalties when the victim was elderly. She
concluded that in broad summary, the bill would provide Al aska
the additional tools necessary to conbat the grow ng problem of
fi nanci al abuse anong el derly and di sabl ed popul ati ons.

10: 01: 16 AM

Ms. G bbens explained the financial exploitation issues anong
vul nerable adults. She indicated that Adult Protective Services
had experienced a slow increase in the nunber of calls regarding
the financial exploitation of vulnerable adults. She stated that
the majority of the calls were regarding adults over 60-years-
old, but some calls were concerning developnmentally disabled or
traumatic brain injury victins. She remarked that in FY 10
Senior & Disability Services (SDS) substantiated 100 cases of
financial exploitation; that nunmber rose to 125 in FY 11 and
during the current fiscal year, SDS had al ready substantiated 85
cases. She indicated there was a trend developing in the rising
nunber of cases of financial exploitation and that nost
i nstances of exploitation involved famly nenbers taking

advantage of other famly nenbers. In many abuse cases, the
of fender had Power of Attorney (POA) over the victim She
di scussed the ways inner-famly financial abuse occurs. She

continued that under SB 86, the undue influence statute, the
ability to inpose financial protective orders, and the ability
appoint tenporary conservators enabled the state to respond
faster and nore effectively to abuse. She related the reasons

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 12 01/18/12 9:02 A M



that caused people to give up their POA and explained the
dynam cs between the offender and the victim

10: 06: 57 AM

Co- Chair Hof fman wondered if any of the 210 cases the prior year
and a half had involved the identity theft of vulnerable adults.
Ms. Barrans indicated that she did not have the exact nunbers
with her, but confirnmed that there were cases involving identity
theft. She agreed to provide the exact nunbers at a | ater date.

Co- Chair Hoffrman inquired how the |egislation addressed identify
theft. M. Barrans deferred the question to one of the
attorneys, but added that she did not believe that SB 86
nmentioned identity theft specifically.

Senator Egan observed that when vul nerable adults relinquished
their POA, they nmay not have had the reasoning capacity
necessary to recognize that someone was taking advantage of
them He wondered how cases where the victim was unaware of
bei ng taken advantage of were dealt with. M. G bbens expl ai ned
that there was a process through which an eval uati on was done to
determne the victinms cognitive ability and added that when the
victim was unaware of being abused, a phone call was needed for
SDS to act

Senator Egan asked if SB 86 required enployees of an assisted
living facility to report the abuse of seniors. M. G bbens
responded that under the bill, enployees of an assisted |iving
facility were mandated to report any possi bl e abuse.

10: 09: 58 AM

Senat or Thomas noted that SB 86 required tenporary conservators
to fill out an annual reporting form that detailed how funds
were spent. He furthered that the annual reporting increased
accountability and he thought it made fraud wunlikely. He
wondered what docunents a conservator signed regarding their
responsibilities and if abuse was substantiated, what penalties
were enforced. Ms. G bbens replied that she was not famliar
with the conservatorship process, but indicated that Kelly
Henri ksen was present to discuss the specifics of the bill.

10: 11: 24 AM

Co- Chair Stednan addressed the updated fiscal notes attached to
SB 86. He introduced a zero fiscal note from the Departnent of

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 13 01/18/12 9:02 A M



Health and Social Services (DHSS), a zero fiscal note the
Department of Administration (DOA), a zero fiscal note from the
Departnent of Law (DOL), a zero fiscal note from the Departnment
of Public Safety (DPS), Al aska State Troopers Detachnent, a zero
fiscal note fromthe Departnent of Corrections (DOC), and a zero
fiscal note fromthe Al aska Court System (COURT). He discussed a
fiscal inmpact note from DPS, Statew de Support, in the anount of
$48,000 in General Funds for the purposes of developing new
protective order forns, updating the Alaska Public Safety
| nformati on Network (APSIN), and training.

10: 13: 37 AM
AT EASE

10: 16: 23 AM
RECONVENED

10: 19: 20 AM

Co-Chair Hoffman noted that there were no provisions in SB 86
that dealt with how the state interfaced with tribal courts
regarding the protection of vulnerable adults. He wondered how
Ms. Russo saw the relationship between the two courts and
queried if she believed, as he did, that it needed to be
specifically addressed in the legislation. M. Russo responded
that it was her experience that tribal courts had not actively
taken a role in conservatorship proceedings. She furthered that
the reason it was not included in the bill was because the
tribal courts had not participated in the past. Co-Chair Hoffman
stressed that the relationship between Al aska and tribal courts
shoul d be spelled out before it becane a problem

Senator Thomas reiterated his prior question regarding the
accountability of conservators and expanded it to enconpass
children in the foster care system M. Russo replied that SB 86
did not specifically address the issue of children in the foster
care system She related that not all fiduciaries were required
to report finances, but that only appointed guardians and
conservators were subject to reporting responsibilities. She
indicated that the gap in accountability was the reason SB 86
had addressed the POA issue. Appoi nted guardians and
conservators were required to wundergo training, an hour of
education, and to sign a letter of acceptance that stated they
under st ood t he reporting requirenents. Guar di ans and
conservators could be held liable if it had been determ ned that
they had acted outside their fiduciary responsibilities. Senator
Thomas asked if there was a statute that gave consideration to

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 14 01/18/12 9:02 A M



ot her persons that mght have fiduciary responsibilities over
vul nerable individuals, particularly regarding the foster care
system M. Russo deferred to M. Sterling and noted that he
woul d be better able to answer the question. She concluded that
SB 86 focused on vulnerable adults and not on the foster care
system

10: 25: 02 AM

SCOTT STERLI NG SUPERVI SI NG ATTORNEY, OFFI CE OF ELDER FRAUD AND
ASSI STANCE, OFFI CE OF PUBLI C ADVOCACY, DEPARTMENT OF
ADM NI STRATION (via teleconference), began a sectional analysis
of SB 86(copy on file). He reviewed the foll ow ng sections:

e Section 3 nmakes the knowing violation or attenpted
violation of a financial protective order (introduced in
section 10 of this legislation to protect vulnerable adults
and el ders) a crine.

e Section 4 anends AS 11.56.740(c), which defines "protective
orders,"” by including financial protective orders issued
under AS 13 .26.207 -13 .26.209 to that definition. This
change brings financial protective orders within the class
of protective orders subject to sanction under the crimnal
code.

e Section 5 anends AS 12.55.155(c) by adding a new paragraph
(35) which makes the fact that a defendant know ngly
directed crimnal conduct at a person 65 years of age or
ol der an aggravating factor at sentencing.

e Section 6 anmends AS 13.26.165(1) by substantively adding
sever al new paragraphs and changes or additions in
definitions to enhance protection of vulnerable persons in
conservatorshi p proceedi ngs as foll ows:

e anmends AS 13.26.165 by deleting the words "nmake another"”
and inserting the words "issue another" regarding the
authority of the court to issue a protection order for a
protected person in conservatorship proceedi ngs;

» creates new paragraph (A) to authorize the court to issue
orders protecting a mnor with noney or property that
needs protection or who otherw se needs protection and
substitutes the word "that" for the word "which" in the
aut hori zi ng | anguage;

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 15 01/18/12 9:02 A M



e creates a new paragraph (B) specifying that the authority
of the court to issue protective orders extends to mnors
wth business affairs that nmay be in jeopardy and
substitutes the word "that" for the word "which” in the
aut hori zi ng | anguage;

e creates a new paragraph (C ensuring that protection
extends to any need to protect a mnor's funds or obtain
funds for a mnor and del etes the unnecessary use of the
word "that" twice in the authorizing | anguage;

e Section 7 anmends AS 13.16.1S0(a) by adding "a person's
attorney or other legal representative.” to the Ilist of
persons who may petition for a conservatorship and further
adds "or caregiver, the Departnent of Health and Soci al
Services" to that list. This change is necessary to broaden
the list of specific persons authorized to petition for a
conservatorship in aid of a vulnerable adult and
specifically to ensure that the Departnent of Health and
Social Services is authorized to do so when necessary.

10: 28: 10 AM

M. Sterling summarized the renmining sections and explained
that they added financial protective orders, which would operate
simlarly to domestic vi ol ence protective or ders. The
legislation also added ex parte relief that would enable a
vul nerable adult or an internediary, wthout a lawer, to go to
any court and apply for protection to stop ongoing abuse. He
explained that it had becone easy to steal soneone's noney and
identity through technol ogy, and when people becane aware of the
problem they needed help imediately. He furthered that the
rationale behind the ex parte relief provision was to enable
victimse to get immediate help and added that other sections
allowed for tenporary conservators. Currently, the statutes
al l owed for tenporary guardians but not conservators. He related
that it was his experience that courts were reluctant to grant
conservatorshi ps because they were not expressly permtted by
statute. The legislation authorized by |aw the appointnent of
tenporary conservators. He stated that the clarification would
enhance the ability of victins and DHSS to obtain imed ate
relief for victinms of financial abuse. He explained that other
portions of bill, which were largely definitional, expanded or
added the definition of things such as fraud, while other
sections added "undue influence" into statue. Under the undue
i nfluence statute, there were specific grounds to assert that a
fiduciary was abusing their responsibility.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 16 01/18/12 9:02 A M



10: 30: 56 AM

M. Sterling responded to Senator Thomas's earlier question, and
indicated that the only fiduciaries in Al aska that were required
to be vetted by a court were guardians and conservators. He
stated that trusts were a private nmatter and furthered that
al t hough there was a section in Title 13 that dealt wth trusts,
there were no requirenents that a trustee be vetted in any way.
He described Alaska's POA statute, found in Section 13, as "a

maxi mum utility, mnimal regulation, and mnimal Iliability
statute.” There were currently no requirenents for serving as
POA and there were no standards, Ilicensing, or liability

provisions to deal wth abuse. He explained that "maxi num
utility" resulted in a greater risk of abuse of fiduciary
responsibility from POA.

In response to an earlier question from Co-Chair Hoffnan, M.
Sterling indicated that he was not |ooking at how the tribal
courts interfaced with state courts when he drafted SB 86. He
felt that taking a look at this aspect was a "neritorious" idea
and furthered that he would be "happy"” to take a |ook at it.

10: 33:19 AM

KELLY HENRI KSEN, ASSI STANT ATTORNEY GENERAL, HUMAN SERVI CES,
DEPARTMENT OF LAW introduced herself. She stated that half of
SB 86 dealt with Adult Protective Services, which was the office
she represented. She indicated that M. Sterling had presented
the part of bill that dealt wth conservatorships and financi al
protective orders, which is found in Title 13. The part that she
had drafted, found in Title 47, dealt wth Adult Protective
Services. The highlights of +the Adult Protective Services
Sections, which began at Section 16 of the bill, added the
concept of "undue influence” to the entire Adult Protective
Services code. The legislation updated the Adult Protective
Services code to neet the practical needs of the tinme. She
stated that because it perneated what Adult Protective Services
did, the term "undue influence" was added anyplace in the
statutes where it specified what kinds of activities soneone
m ght make a report of harm about, such as abuse, neglect, or
sel f-neglect. She related that nost of the Sections in the Adult
Protective Services part of the bill sinply added the term
"undue influence", but that there were no other substantive
changes in those Sections. She remarked that another inportant
thing the Adult Protective Services portion of SB 86 did was

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 17 01/18/12 9:02 A M



that it updated and added definitions in the statutes to nore
accurately reflect reality.

Ms. Henriksen offered that the final element worthy of note from
the portion of SB 86 that she had drafted was that it expanded
the list of what services Adult Protective Services was able to
provi de, short of a guardian or conservator being appoi nted. She
cited exanples of these services as follows: staying a financia

transaction at a bank, assistance with a rental application,

providing food, and providing other care services an adult
needed. She indicated that instead of doing a guardian's duties,

Adult Protective Services had discovered a need to have a
clearer definition of what they could do as an internediary. She
concluded by stating that other than the three elenents she had
pointed out, there was not anything significant in the Al aska
Protective Services portion of the sectional.

Senator O sen stated that he assuned the victimzation of elders
represented the mnority of cases of financial abuse. M.
Henri ksen responded that she was unsure if that statenent was
correct, but indicated that Ms. G bbens m ght be able to respond
to the question. Senator O sen queried if there was strain being
pl aced on individuals who were conplying with the law and were
legitimately trying to obtain guardianship or conservatorship.
He expressed concern that responsible children could have a
difficult time obtaining guardianship or conservatorship from
parents who were not being abused. M. G bbens replied that she
did not believe that to be true and furthered that the process
followed to gain guardianship or conservatorship was the sane
whet her or not an individual was attenpting to take advantage of
an el der.

10: 37: 31 AM

Senator Thonas referenced a 25 percent increase in the abuse
rate on the system over the |ast year and asked if anything in
SB 86 specifically addressed the issue. M. Henriksen specified
that the ability to inpose financial protective orders and
tenporary conservators were two additions that addressed the
i ncrease in abuse.

Senator Thomas queried if M. Henriksen thought there should be
a nore thorough vetting process, such as a background check,
when a guardian or conservator was appointed. M. Henriksen
responded that if Adult Protective Services received a report of
harm their investigation was "very thorough”". She nentioned
that during an investigation informal background checks were

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 18 01/18/12 9:02 A M



performed, so that when the case was heard any issue about a
potential guardian or conservator would be raised in open court.
She concluded that in her experience, Adult Protective Services
did not take chances when allegations of abuse had been raised.
She furthered that Adult Protective Services gathered as nuch
information as possible, so that the judge could mneke the
deci si on on who was appropri ate.

Ms. Henriksen revealed that the transfer of POA was a private
matter that did not require any state involvenment or tine before
a judge and explained that because of this, the state was
unaware and unable to affect that process. She continued that
Adult Protective Services could only get involved when they
received a report of harm but that once they were involved, the
process was thorough.

Senate Bill 86 was HEARD and HELD in Conmmttee for further
consi derati on.

#
ADJ OQURNIVENT
10: 41: 09 AM

The neeting was adjourned at 10:41 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 19 01/18/12 9:02 A M



